UNCLASSIFIED

AD NUMBER

AD814610

LIMITATION CHANGES

TO:

Approved for public release; distribution is unlimited.

FROM:

Distribution authorized to U.S. Gov't. agencies and their contractors; Critical Technology; FEB 1967. Other requests shall be referred to Air Force Materials Laboratory, MAYA, Wright-Patterson AFB, OH 45433. This document contains export-controlled technical data.

AUTHORITY

afsc usaf ltr, 1 jan 1972

THIS PAGE IS UNCLASSIFIED

SYNTHESIS AND STUDY OF MONO-o-PHENANTHROLINE CHROMIUM (III) PERCHLORATE

PAUL M. MASLONA, 1/LT, USAF

TECHNICAL REPORT AFML-TR-67-25



FEBRUARY 1967

This document is subject to special export controls and each transmittal to foreign governments or foreign nationals may be made only with prior approval of the Air Force Materials Laboratory (MAYA), Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio 45433.

> AIR FORCE MATERIALS LABORATORY RESEARCH AND TECHNOLOGY DIVISION AIR FORCE SYSTEMS COMMAND WRIGHT-PATTERSON AIR FORCE BASE, OHIO



NOTICES

When Government drawings, specifications, or other data are used for any purpose other than in connection with a definitely related Government procurement operation, the United States Government thereby incurs no responsibility nor any obligation whatsoever; and the fact that the G_{c} remnent may have formulated, furnished, or in any way supplied the said drawings, specifications, or other data, is not to be regarded by implication or otherwise as in any manner licensing the holder or any other person or corporation, or conveying any rights or permission to manufacture, use, or sell any patented invention that may in any way be related thereto.

Copies of this report should not be returned to the Research and Technology Division unless return is required by security considerations, contractual obligations, or notice on a specific document.

300 - April 1967 - CO192 - 29-700

ľ

SYNTHESIS AND STUDY OF MONO-0-PHENANTHROLINE CHROMIUM (III) PERCHLORATE

PAUL M. MASLONA, 1/LT, USAF

This document is subject to special export controls and each transmittal to foreign governments or foreign nationals may be made only with prior approval of the Air Force Materials Laboratory (MAYA), Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio 45433.

FOREWORD

This report was prepared by the Analytical Branch, Materials Physics Division, Air Force Materials Laboratory. The work was initiated under Project No. 7360, "The Chemistry and Physics of Materials," Task No. 736005, "Compositional, Atomic and Molecular Analysis," and administered by the Air Force Materials Laboratory, Research and Technology Division, Air Force Systems Command, Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Chio, Paul M. Maslona, 1/Lt, USAF, Project Engineer.

This report covers work performed from July 1966 to December 1966. The manuscript was released by the author in January 1967 for publication as a Technical Report.

The author gratefully acknowledges the assistance of Joseph Walsh, S.M., of the Department of Chemistry, University of Dayton, Dayton, Ohio, in performing the polarographic measurements, and his understanding of the problem.

This technical report has been reviewed and is approved.

Freeman F. Bentley FREEMAN F. BENTLEY

FREEMAN F. BENTLEY V Chief, Analytical Branch Materials Physics Division Air Force Materials Laloratory

I

ABSTRACT

The mono-o-phenanthroline chromium (III) perchlorate complex is prepared by two separate methods, (1) direct addition of the base to the metal ion in acid solution and heating, and (2) the use of Cr(II) to catalyze the reaction. The desired complex is then isolated by ion-exchange methods, and determined by spectrophotometric and elemental microanalytical procedures. Polarographic information is also given.

(Distribution of this abstract is unlimited.)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTIO	N		PAGE
I	'NT	RODUCTION	1
	1.	Purpose of the Investigation	1
	2.	Background	1
		a. The Heterocyclic Diamines	1
		b. Chromium and Chromium Complex Formation	2
		c. Ion Exchange Methods	4
		d. Polarographic Methods	4
		e. Summary	6
ц	EX	PERIMENTAL	7
	1.	Reagents	7
	2.	Instrumentation	7
	3.	Complex Synthesis	8
ш	RE	SULTS AND DISCUSSION	10
	1.	o-Phenanthroline Ultraviolet Spectra	10
	2,	Cr(III) (c-phen) Made by Heating	10
	3.	Cr(III) (o-phen) Made by Cr(II) Catalysis	14
	4.	Portion of Infrared Spectra of Cr(III) (o-phen)2	14
	5.	Polarographic Analysis of Complex Produced by Heating and Catalysis	18
IV	CO	NCLUSION	21

REFERENCES

V

1

ILLUSTRATIONS

FIGURE		PAGE
1.	Ultraviolet Spectra of o-Phenanthroline at pH of 2.5 Compared With That at pH 6.5 (1 cm Cell)	11
2.	Visible Absorption Spectra of a Cr(III) o-Phenanthroline Mixture Heated at 100°C	12
3.	Visible Absorption Spectra of Thermally Prepared Complex After Separation (5 cm Cell)	13
4.	Ultraviolet Absorption Spectra of Complex After Separation Compared With Pure Ligand (1 cm Cell)	15
5.	Visible Absorption Spectra of Cr(III) o-Phenanthroline Mixture After Cr(II) Addition (1 cm Cell)	16
6.	Portion of Infrared Spectra of bis Cr(III) o-Phenanthroline Perchlorate	17
7.	Polarogram of a 1.0 ± 0.2 mM Monocomplex at pH 3.70	19
8.	Tomes Plot of the Complex Produced by Heating and Catalysis	20

ľ

SECTION I

INTRODUCTION

1. PURPOSE OF THE INVESTIGATION

It has been shown previously that some chromium complexes containing strong field ligands are reduced more reversibly at the Dropping Mercury Electrode (D.M.E.) than those of other complexes. It has also been observed that these complexes exhibit charge transfer bands near the visible portion of the spectrum (References 1 and 2). A chromium complex of a strong field ligand which shows this near-visible charge transfer band is Cr(III) (o-phen) $(H_2O)_A$

(Reference 3), (o-phen = o-phenanthroline). The purpose of this investigation was to synthesize this complex and to study its polarographic half-wave potential.

2. BACKGROUND

a. The Heterocyclic Diamines

The heterocyclic diamines, o-phenanthroline and 2,2'-dipyridine, have played an important part in the development of coordination chemistry (Reference 4). The ligands have absorption bands in the ultraviolet, well separated from those of the metal (Reference 5). This fact, plus the large absorption coefficient and high stability of the complexes, makes it possible to follow product formation spectrophotometrically (Reference 5). The fact that the ligands form neutral or mildly basic aqueous solutions and are only slightly soluble in water is a minor drawback. The slight solubility can be overcome by using the acid salt of the ligand which readily dissolves (Reference 3). The effect of protonation of the nitrogen atoms of the diamines on the ultraviolet spectra must be known prior to reaction in acid solution since the shift in absorption bands toward the visible could be interpreted as complex formation. This pH dependent shift was studied by Perkampus and Kohler (Reference 6) who also studied seven related phenanthrolines. Favini (Reference 7) correlated the ultraviolet spectra of m,p,ophenanthrolines in different solvents, including H_2SO_4 , with some discussion as to the nature

of the observed bands. Kinetic studies have been made on the transition metal complexes of the ligands by Holyer, et al. (Reference 5). Steinhaus and Margerum (Reference 8) studied the effect of halide substitution on the replacement of coordinated water in the Ni(II) (o-phen) complex. Stability constants for o-phenanthroline and 2,2'-dipyridine were determined with hydrogen ions and various bivalent metal ions by Anderegg (Reference 9) who used a potentiometric method. The rates of complex formation and water exchange of o-phenanthroline and Ni(II), Co(II), and Fe(II) were given by Langford and Gray (Reference 10), who found an analogy to the anion reaction of $Co(NH_3)_5 OH_2^{+3}$. The water-exchange process is faster in most cases.

o-Phenanthroline has been widely used in the colorimetric determination of iron as the Fe(III) complex whose maximum absorption band is at 508 m μ (Reference 11). Secrest, et al. (Reference 12), have used this method for the determination of o-phen in alcoholic solutions by adding iron to the solution. Close agreement was found in the procedure.

Perhaps the most important factor for using the diamines in complex formation is their ability to produce large crystal field splitting of the "d" orbitals on metal ions. These orbitals, in the case of octahedral complexes, undergo a perturbation resulting in three stabilized and two destabilized orbitals. The energy separation between these two types of orbitals is designated 10 Dq, and can be determined by spectral studies (Reference 13). Ligands which produce large values of 10 Dq are referred to as strong field ligands, and form

I

extremely stable complexes. Unusual oxidation states, such as Cr(II) (CN)₆⁻⁴, can be stabilized by complexation with strong field ligands (Reference 14). The large size of the diamines also makes it possible, by varying the size of the central metal ion, to produce the mono, bis, and tris form; the tris species on a small central ion would not be stable due to steric factors.

b. Chromium and Chromium Complex Formation

Chromium (III) is one of the best known and most extensively studied metal ions in coordination chemistry (Reference 15). For octahedral complexes of identical ligands, such as Cr(III) (NH₃)₆, the ground state has the configuration $(t_{2g})^3$ and also shows two higher levels $(t_{2g})^2(e_g)$ and $(t_{2g})(e_g)^2$ in the spectra and shows complete agreement between calculated and experimental values (Reference 16).

Virtually all chromium compounds are strongly colored, and detectable in some cases to one ppm. One of the important methods of analysis for chromium is the formation of the s-diphenyl carbazide complex which shows a maximum absorption at 540 m μ , and an extinction coefficient at 3.14 x 10⁴ at this wavelength (Reference 17). Other methods, using complex formation, included reaction with sodium 1,8-dihydroxynaphthalene3,6-disulfonate, benzidine and aniline (Reference 18). Since chromium is commonly determined in aqueous solutions, and has many color reactions, no data are available on analytical methods using ultraviolet methods. Cr(H₂O)₆⁺³ in NO₃⁻ and ClO₄⁻ solutions can be converted by heating or OH⁻ addition to the olated species readily. Cr(OH)(H₂O)₅⁺² forms first, and upon heating,



Upon oxalation, $(H_2O)_5$ Cr-O-Cr $(H_2O)_5^{+4}$ forms. Continued OH⁻ addition to Cr $(OH)(H_2O)_5^{+2}$ forms Cr $(OH)_3(H_2O)_3$ which precipitates and rearranges to Cr₂O₃·XH₂O. Cr $(H_2O)_6^{+3}$ is violet in color and shows two absorption peaks which are pH, temperature, and concentration dependent at 580 m μ and 420 m μ (Reference 19).

Hunt and Taube (Reference 20), and Swaddle et al. (Reference 21), have shown through radio isotope methods that both hexaquochromium (III) and hexammine chromium (III) hold their six ligand molecules distinct from solvent for many hours. Substitution of one of the ligands of $Cr(III)(X)_6$ is exceedingly slow or does not occur at all. A ligand field stabilization energy computation (Reference 22) indicates that d^3 systems are more resistant to distortions leading to five or ω seven coordinate intermediates than other systems, hence the inertnews (slow ligand exchange) of the complexes. It is for this reason that complex synthesis using $Cr(III)(H_2O)_6$ as a starting material is an extremely slow process and therefore not a very popular method of formation of the desired Cr(III) complex. However, this method is of some value when anhydrous Cr(III) salts are used, when the reaction is carried out in non-aqueous solutions, or by heating the ligand and $Cr(H_2O)_6^{+3}$ for long periods of time (Reference 3). Broomhead and Dwyer (Reference 23) produced the inonodipyridine and

Į,

o-phenanthroline Cr(III) complex by reaction of the base with excess anhydrous metal halide in dimethylformamide (DMF), and boiling, showing the use of all three methods to increase reaction rate.

A more popular method is the use of Cr(II) to catalyze the reaction. This procedure can be carried out using Cr(III) ligand and amalgamated zinc in acid solution under an inert gas. In this reaction, Cr(II) is formed when Cr(III) is reduced by metallic zinc. The Cr(II) being labile (rapid ligand exchange), forms the Cr(II) complex readily, and subsequently undergoes electron exchange with Cr(III) forming a Cr(III) complex. This method gives rise to Zn(II) in solution, which may also complex with the ligand. Isolation of the desired Cr(III)complex is also made more difficult. A less complicated method is that of direct addition of Cr(II) to the aqueous mixture of Cr(III) and ligand under an inert gas.

It has been demonstrated (Reference 24) that this Cr(II) catalysis is analogous to certain $Co(III) \longrightarrow Co(II)$ reactions (Reference 25), and is considered to involve bridging groups which link the two chromium atoms during electron transfer. The lability of Cr(II) and the relative inertness of Cr(III) to substitution makes this reaction extremely important in synthesis as well as studies of the influence of the nature of these bridging groups on the speed of the catalysis (Reference 24). Since o-phen is a nonbridging ligand, it is suggested that the effect on the rate of electron transfer results from the stabilization of one of the oxidation states by coordination (Reference 24). Earnshaw and Lewis (Reference 26), when studying the exchange integral between magnetic ions in the Cr(III) (o-phen) complex noted a

small interaction when the bridging groups were Cl or OH; but a marked interaction when O was used as the bridging group. This was interpreted as the formation of π bonds between chromium ions and the oxygen atom bridge. This effect was also noted in the Fe(III) (o-phen) species. It can be shown that this π bond interaction helps promote the Cr(II) catalysis, as does the effect of the nonbridging ligand (Reference 24).

The catalysis reaction is seen to proceed by the following sequence (Reference 24):

$$\operatorname{Cr}^{+2} + \operatorname{L} \longrightarrow \operatorname{Cr}^{+2}$$

 $\operatorname{Cr}^{+2} + \operatorname{Cr}^{+3} = \begin{bmatrix} H \\ H \\ \operatorname{L}^{O} \\ \operatorname{Cr}(II) \\ O \\ H \end{bmatrix} \xrightarrow{\operatorname{Cr}} \operatorname{Cr}(III) \xrightarrow{\operatorname{Cr}} \operatorname{Cr}^{+3}$

The reaction is seen to be self-supporting since Cr^{+2} is produced by the oxidation, and thus able to proceed to completion. Similar reactions (Reference 24) were found to be dependent on $\begin{bmatrix} H^+ \end{bmatrix}^{-1}$ thus must be run at as high as pH as possible; the olation of the $Cr(H_2O)_6^{+3}$ must also be considered.

The stabilization of the Cr(II) complex in the catalysis by coordination is of the utmost importance. Cr(II) contains 4"d" electrons; the "d" orbitals are effectively split by a strong field ligand producing a high crystal field stabilization energy (C.F.S.E.) of 16. The resulting Cr(II) complex is thus stabilized by coordination. The rate of Cr(II) catalysis on the formation of Cr(III) complexes of various ligands shows: EDTA > $P_2O_7^{-4}$ >> $PO_4^{-3} \approx F^-$ >NCS⁻

Ŋ

(Reference 1) which is in rough agreement with the C F.S.E. of the ligands. This stabilization could be measured by the Cr(III)L + e^- Cr(II)L potential which is related to the ratio of the stability constants of the Cr complexes $K_{(II)}/K_{(III)}$ (Reference 27).

Herzog (Reference 28) in synthesis of the Cr(II) (o-phen), and Cr(III) (o-phen)₃ species measured the effective magnetic moment of the complexes and compared them to the 2,2' dipyridyl analogs. The polymeric species



was measured magnetically by Earnshaw and Lewis (Reference 29).

Steric hindrance of the 1:1 complex was investigated by Sisler, et al. (Reference 30), who formed the species at ~80°C. The interference was found to be intermediate between that which hinders lutidine or collidine adducts from forming. Inskeep and Bjerrum (Reference 3) in their production of the mono and bis forms, found no evidence of tris species formation, even after prolonged heating of the bis form in excess o-phenanthroline. They attributed this lack of formation to the extensive reorientation needed in the bis for the 1:3 (Cr:ligand) complex to form. The Co $\left[(o-phen)_2 Cl_2 \right] Cl \cdot 3H_2O$ complex and its bromide analogs were produced by Kon (Reference 31) who studied their X-ray spectra. He determined unit cell parameters and determined the space groups of the complexes.

c. Ion Exchange Methods

After the complex is produced, either by the Cr(II) catalysis method or by heating a mixture of the reactants, there exists in solution the complex and excess starting materials which must be separated in order to isolate the desired species. Ion-exchange techniques are best suited for this type of separation. The validity of this method was proven by King and Dismukes (Reference 32). The autnors showed that by carefully choosing column length and acid strength, they were able to eluce a complex species without quantitative elucion of uncomplexed Cr(III). This method works extremely well when a charged ligand is used in the complexation (References 1, 24, and 33), but when both excess Cr(III) and the formed complex have identical electronic charges the excess Cr(III) must be eluted first. Protonated o-phenanthroline which now also possesses a charge (+1 or +2 depending on the acid strength of the solvent) may also be eluted by acid.

d. Polarographic Methods

Following lution, the complex can be measured polarographically, i.e., the reduction of Cr(III)L to Cr(III)L. Vlcek (Reference 34) when studying a series of Co(III) $(NH_3)_5 X$ complexes,

correlated the activation energy with the electronic structure from absorption data, and found that a given change in electronic energy produced a much greater change in activation energy. He postulated that the polarization of the ligand X by the electric field of the electrode occurs, resulting in excitation of an electron from dxy to the d_z^2 orbital, vacating the dxy orbital for

electron transfer. Pecsok and Lingane (Reference 35) observed the anodic wave for the oxidation of Cr(II) — Cr(III) and found at higher pH the oxidation wave is displaced negatively. Later studies by Pecsok, et al. (References 36 and 37) found Cr(II)-EDTA and Cr(II) salicylate complexes to be powerful reductants, with $E_{1/2} = -1.48$ and -1.23v, respectively, vs Standard

Calomel Electrode (S.C.E.), although quantitative measurements were difficult. Meites (Reference 38) and Kolthoff and Lingane (Reference 39) have done extensive work on half-wave potentials of chromium ions in different electrolytes, finding that complexation shifts the half-wave potentials to more negative values. Generally two waves are noted in polarographic reductions (III — II — O) although in the case of Cr(III) (dipyridyl)₃ complex (Reference 40)

three are found. This is not in agreement with Baker and Mehta (Reference 41), however, who found a two-electron transfer.

In their work on the mechanism of the reduction of Cr(III) (H₂O)₆ in acid solutions, Elving and Zemel (Reference 45) postulated two possible mechanisms for electron transfer: (1) direct transfer of Cr(III) ion from the electrode at the mercury solution interface, and (2) transfer of an electron to Cr(III) from a Cr(II) ion produced at the interface. As the reduction continues, a $\begin{bmatrix} Cr(II) \end{bmatrix}$ in the diffusion layer becomes so much larger that an incoming Cr(III) may be reduced by it, and thus the Cr(II) serves as an electron transfer agent between Cr(III) and the electrode.

Of utmost importance in polarography is the "reversibility" of the reduction. A provisional indication of the reversibility (one-electron change) was taken by Walsh and Earley (Reference 1) as a value of θ close to unity in:

$$\log \frac{d}{d} = 0.059 \theta$$
 E, which is a form of

$$E_{d.e.} = E_{1/2} - \frac{.059}{n} \log \frac{i}{i_d - i}$$
 (Reference 46)

It is evident that a plot of $E_{d.e.}$ vs $\log \frac{i}{i_d - i}$ should produce a straight line with slope equal

to .0591/nv at 25°C. Chromic complexes can be seen to be either completely reversible or completely irreversible depending upon the ligand coordinated to the metal ion. The shift to more negative reduction potentials for ligands corresponding to increasing C.F.S.E. may be interpreted on the basis of stabilization of d^3 Cr(III) relative to spin-free d^3d_{γ} Cr(II) (Reference 47).

e. Summary

It can be seen that this investigation must have the following steps: (a) study of the effect of increasing $[H^+]$ on the ultraviolet spectra of the ligand, and to ascertain if a Beer's Law correlation is followed; (b) synthesis of the complex Cr(III) (o-phen) (H₂O)₄ by two separate methods (1) mixture of metal and ligand with heating for long periods of time, and (2) use of Cr(II) catalysis; (c) separation of product from excess starting material by ion-exchange techniques; (d) identification of isolated complex by spectroscopic methods; and finally (e) use of polarographic information to ascertain if this complex is in agreement as to its reduction potential with other strong field ligand chromium complexes.

SECTION II

EXPERIMENTAL

1. REAGENTS

Throughout this investigation, double distilled water was used.

Hexaquo chromium (III) perchlorate stock solutions have been prepared by reduction of CrO_3 by formic acid in $HCIO_4$ medium (Reference 48), and by recrystallizing the product from deionized water. However, a much simpler procedure is to dissolve appropriate amounts of reagent grade hydrated chromium perchlorate (Reference 49) in water. The pH of the solutions was carefully adjusted at 2.5 by the slow addition of dilute NaOH, and with constant stirring by a magnetic stirrer. Chromium concentration of these solutions was measured spectrophotometrically after alkaline peroxide oxidation to chromate. At 374 m μ , ϵ is 4800 (Reference 50). All other chromium analyses were performed in this method.

Chromous perchlorate solutions could have been prepared by the electrolytic reduction of hexaquo chromium (III) perchlorate in dilute $HClO_4$ (Reference 24). However, a more direct method was to dissolve a weighed amount of electrolytically pure chromium metal in acid. A 50 ml Erlenmeyer flask containing 40 ml of 1 M $HClO_4$ was purged free of oxygen with dry helium. Chromium metal is washed with dilute HCl, rinsed with water, and dissolved in the 1 M $HClO_4$. Dry helium is passed through the solution until all the metal is dissolved (Reference 51). The flask is then quickly sealed with a soft rubber septum under helium and appropriate amounts withdrawn by a calibrated syringe. Under these conditions, it is found that the Cr(II) will not appreciably oxidize to Cr(III) within a period of two to three days. Chromium concentration was also checked spectrophotometrically after oxidation to CrO_4^{-1} .

Solutions of o-phenanthroline (Reference 52) were prepared by weight using a Mettler Model H microchemical balance. In this study, no acid salt was formed, and the solutions of concentration of 0.005 M and above must be heated and shaken vigorously for a period of two hours to completely dissolve the ligand. The ultraviolet absorption spectrum of these solutions was then studied with respect to the change in bands with $[H^+]$. A significant difference in the spectra was seen from pH of 6.8 to 2.5; this latter value is the pH at which the Cr(III) complex was prepared catalytically.

2. INSTRUMENTATION

Visible and ultraviolet studies were made on a Cary Model 14 spectrophotometer using matched cells at room temperature. All dilutions and reference solutions were of identical $r_{\rm H}$; dilute NaOH and HClO₄ were used to adjust the pH. The spectrophotometer was balanced prior

to each run in order to give the true spectrum of only the desired material. The infrared spectra of solids were run on a Beckman Model IR-10 infrared spectrophotometer using the KBr pellet technique with a 1-100 part dilution. All polarographic measurements were carried out at $25 \pm 0.1^{\circ}$ C using a standard H-cell and saturated calomel reference electrode with the usual circuitry. Mercury electrcde drop time was 2.5 seconds in 0.1 M NaClO₄ at -1.00v potential. Polarograms were obtained with a Sargeant Model XV polarograph.

3. COMPLEX SYNTHESIS

The Cr(III) (o-phen) $(H_2O)_4$ complex was prepared by two separate methods. In the first procedure (Reference 3), Cr(III) $(H_2O)_6(CIO_4)_3$ was added to an o-phenanthroline salt solution at pH 2.5 using a 1:3 molar ratio of Cr(III):o-phen. The mixture was then heated on a hot plate at 100°C for 36 hours, the volume and pH of the solution being kept constant. Hydrogen ions are liberated by the reaction, which causes a decrease in rate since the reaction h as an inverse $[H^+]$ dependence. After heating for the appropriate time, the scarlet solution is rapidly cooled. An orange-red precipitate is formed and filtered out leaving a deep red effluent. The precipitate is washed twice with dilute HCIO₄, and dried over Mg(CIO₄)₂. Ultraviolet and microchemical analysis showed these crystals to be Cr(III) (o-phen)₂(H₂O)₂ complex. Calculated: Cr = 7.11%; N = 7.65\%. Found: Cr = 6.89\%; N = 7.30\%.

This complex has a visible absorption band at 510 m $\mu(\epsilon = 55)$. The deep red effluent is then placed on a 1 cm diameter column of Dowex 50W x 8(50-100 mesh). In this separation, however, both the desired complex and excess chromium are trivalent. The column is washed with 0.1 M HClO₄ to elute excess ligand. Then a large volume of 1.5 M HClO₄ is passed

through the resin to elute the unreacted chromium. The feasibility of this separation has been shown by King and Dismukes (Reference 32). The washings are constantly checked for the metal ion spectrophotometrically after alkaline peroxide treatment. Only when chromium elution is complete is stronger acid used to elute the desired complex. First attempts at elution of the desired complex failed when Dowex 50X 8(100-200 mesh) was used. The large size of the complex probably prevented any elution. Throughout these washings, some red color remained at the top of the column. Washing with 6 M HClO₄ failed to elute it. This red species is considered

to be some polymeric form of the complex. An attempt was made to concentrate the complex using the technique of Espenson and Carlyle (Reference 33); however, no complex was eluted using either 1 M barium perchlorate of 1 M cerium perchlorate.

After elution, the red solution was brought up to a pH of 2.5 by the slow addition of Na_2CO_3 with constant stirring. Analysis for Cr(III) was performed spectrophotometrically after alkaline-peroxide oxidation as chromate. Since the ultraviolet band intensity of the o-phenanthroline changes when bonded to the metal, no Beer's Law relationship could be performed. However, o-phenanthroline could be analyzed after destruction of the complex (alkaline-peroxide oxidation). Using this method [Cr] was found to be 0.0012; and [o-phen] = 0.0013 M. In this way, a 1:1 molar ratio of chromium to o-phenanthroline was established. Also, the ultraviolet spectrum of the ligand gave a very definite shift toward the visible, a shift of almost equal wavelength which was seen in the Zn(o-phen) complex (Reference 5). The second method used in the synthesis was that of Cr(II) catalysis. A 5:1 molar ratio of

Cr(III) stock solution to o-phenanthroline was placed in a 50 ml Erlenmeyer flask sealed by a soft rubber septum under these conditions: pH 2.5, $\mu = 1.0$ (NaClO₄), temperature at 25 ± 1°C. At first a metal hypodermic syringe needle was used for purging the solution free of oxygen, but it was found that the o-phenanthroline reacted readily with the iron of the needle to form the Fe(o-phen)₃⁺³ complex. This necessitated the use of a glass capillary which was immersed directly into the solution and dry helium bubbled freely for at least 10 minutes. The system was vented by another glass capillary. Reaction was then initiated by the addition of Cr(II) by means of a calibrated syringe being careful not to immerse the syringe needle into the solution. A molar ratio of 30:1 Cr(II):Cr(II) was found to be the most favorable.

The mixture was allowed to stand for at least 20 minutes under helium to insure completion. Oxygen was then bubbled through the flask to convert the unreacted Cr(II) to Cr(III). The contents of the flask were placed in an ion-exchange column of similar construction and treated as previously stated. Again the [Cr(III)] and [o-phen] were measured spectrophotometrically after destruction of the complex. For example, using 0.004 M o-phen and 0.0020 M Cr(III) stock solution, and an appropriate amount of Cr(II), it was found after separation that [Cr(III)] = 0.00027M; [o-phen] = 0.00029 M. Thus the 1:1 [Cr] : [o-phen] composition is confirmed.

An attempt was also made to produce the tris form of the complex. Chromium metal was dissolved as before, in 1 M HClO_4 , under dry helium, but with a fivefold excess of o-phenanthroline present in the solution. A dark amber solution formed as the metal dissolved, and upon air oxidation and cooling, dark red crystals precipitated. These were filtered and washed with dilute HClO_4 , dried, and analyzed for nitrogen using a Coleman Nitrogen Analyzer.

Calculated for $Cr(C_{12}H_8N_2)_3(ClO_4)_3$, Nitrogen = 9.47%. Found: Nitrogen = 7.55%.

This result matches the nitrogen content for the $Cr(o-phen)_2(H_2O)_2(ClO_4)_3$ complex.

SECTION III

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

1. o-PHENANTHROLINE ULTRAVIOLET SPECTRA

Figure 1 shows the ultraviolet spectra of o-phenanthroline at pH 2.5 (with $HClO_4$) compared with that of the ligand dissolved in water (pH 6.5). These spectra closely match the reported values (Reference 53) where:

Solvent/pH	λ (maximum) m	$\log \epsilon$
н ₂ о	227	5.3
	263	5.21
5.8	224	4.5
	266	4.5
dil HCl	218	4.5
	270	4.5
	275 (shoulder)	4.5

It can be seen that the 263 m μ peak (in H₂O) is continuously shifted at lower pH values to the reported 270 m μ value when dilute HC! is used as the solvent. This band, attributed to $\pi \longrightarrow \pi^*$ transitions of the ring structure, exhibits this shift due to the addition of hydrogen ion to the free electron pair of the nitrogen atoms of the compound. Bliznynkov and Reznikov (Reference 54), studying the solvent effects on the spectra of pyridine and related derivatives, experienced similar shifts when EtOH: HCl (1:1) solutions were used. The spectral data received using the Cary Model 14, showed another absorption band at 205 m μ which has not been previously reported. This band is present in both acid and neutral solutions.

2. Cr(III) (o-PHEN) MADE BY HEATING

The visible absorption spectra of a Cr(III) o-phenanthroline mixture as it is heated at 100°C is given in Figure 2. Samples were removed, cooled to room temperature, and spectra recorded. After a short period of time, an absorption at 530 m μ is visible and on prolonged heating, this band broadens and increases in intensity into the 520 m μ region.

The monocomplex was then isolated from excess reagents by filtration and ion-exchange techniques. Figure 3 shows the visible absorption spectrum after separation, using matched 5 cm cells at pH 2.5. It shows a maximum absorption at 515 m μ , with shoulders at about 430 and 390 m μ , going off scale at 370 m μ (ϵ at 515 m μ = 60). The absorption shift of 580 m μ for hexaquo chromium (III) to the 515 m μ level for the mono-o-phenanthroline complex gives



Figure 1. Ultraviolet Spectra of o-Phenanthroline at pH of 2.5 Compared With That at pH 6.5 (1 cm Cell)

AFML-TR-67-25

Ņ



Figure 2. Visible Absorption Spectra of a Cr(III) o-Phenanthroline Mixture Heated at 100°C

Į



Figure 3. Visible Absorption Spectra of Thermally Prepared Complex After Separation (5 cm Cell)

a good indication as to the magnitude of the "d" orbital splitting by the ligand. Using these absorption maxima, the 10 Dg energy can be calculated:

Complex	λ (maximum) Å	Dq
Cr(III) (H ₂ O) ₆	5800	$17,300 \text{ cm}^{-1}$ (1)
$Cr(III)$ (o-phen) $(H_2O)_4$	51 50	$19,400 \text{ cm}^{-1}$ (2)

The difference between (2) and (1) is 2100 cm^{-1} or corresponding to an increase in the 10 Dq value for the mono-o-phen complex compared with the bexaquo complex of 210 cm^{-1} or 600 cal/mole (Reference 55). Due to solvent ion interaction, the absorption is not as sharp as the atomic spectra of gaseous ions. The wavelength of maximum absorption, however, does coincide with the value which would be obtained in the absence of these interactions (Reference 56).

The isolated complex was then run in the ultraviolet region, the resultant spectra compared with that of the pure ligand, all at pH 2.5 as shown in Figure 4. It can be seen that the 218 m μ ligand peak is shifted to 223 m μ , and the 270 m μ band shifted to 275 m μ . Of interest is the absorption intensity change of the 270 m μ peak. The intensity of this $\pi - \pi^*$ transition in the ring structure of o-phenanthroline is probably due to the increased stability given the ligand when bonded to the heavy metal ion. The 218 m μ band also shows this decrease in intensity. Other o-phenanthroline complexes, showing the ligand shifts are (Reference 53):

Complex	Solvent/pH	λ (maximum) m	log €
Fe(III) (o-phen) $(H_2^0)_4$	н ₂ о	274	4.73
Zn(II) (o-phen)	4.5	270	3.99
Cd(II) (o-phen)	5.84	227	4.5
		267	4.8

3. Cr(III) (o-PHEN) MADE BY Cr(II) CATALYSIS

Using the complex synthesized by the Cr(II) catalysis method, similar spectra were reproduced in all cases. Figure 5 shows the visible spectra of Cr(III) o-phen mixture after Cr(II) addition. The 525 to 530 m μ absorption band is clearly visible, as in the presence of excess chromium (III). In these runs, only small amounts of reactants were used. The reaction is extremely rapid, going from violet to cherry-red as soon as the Cr(II) is added. After column separation, the visible and ultraviolet spectra of the monocomplex produced by both methods are similar.

4. PORTION OF INFRARED SPECTRA OF Cr(111) (o-PHEN),

Figure 6 shows a selected portion of the infrared spectra of the bis complex produced by the heating method. The 3700 to 3100 cm^{-1} region shows a slight shift in the N-H stretching vibrations, however, complicated by the presence of -OH bands in the pure ligand. This N-H shift could correspond to a N-metal stretch (Reference 57), but cannot be taken as definite N-Cr bond formation.





*

N



Figure 5. Visible Absorption Spectra of Cr(III) o-Phenanthroline Mixture After Cr(II) Addition (1 cm Cell)

.

۳ł



.



-

5. POLAROGRAPHIC ANALYSIS OF COMPLEX PRODUCED BY HEATING AND CATALYSIS

Isolated complex solutions were subjected to polarographic reductions. The efficiency of the ion-exchange technique for the separation of the uncomplexed Cr(III) was noted as the polarogram showed little, if any, excess Cr(III) except that for the occurrence of normal equilibrium. Figure 7 shows a polarogram of a 1.0 ± 0.2 mM monocomplex at pH 3.70. The small wave at about -0.81v is the occurrence of unreacted Cr(III) or normal equilibrium (Reference 1). The large reduction at about -1.1v is the reduction of the Cr(III) complex. The conditions used for these determinations were: $25^{\circ} \pm 0.1^{\circ}$ C, N₂ atmosphere, 0.1 M NaClO₄, 0.002% gelatin with no buffers. 1.0 ± 0.2 m M solutions of Cr(III) (H₂O)₆ were reduced prior to reduction of the mono-o-phenanthroline complex in media of varying pH, with results that closely follow those of Walsh and Earley (Reference 1).

Figure 8, a Tomes plot $(E_{d.e.} \text{ vs log i/i}_d \text{-i})$ of the complex produced by both methods shows some diversion from reversibility ($\theta = 1.19$ for both plots). The difference in $\epsilon_{1/2}$ values for the plots ($E_{d.e.}$ where plot passes through log i/i_d-i = 0) are due to the pH differences in the solutions. The complex produced by catalysis being reduced at pH 3.70, that of the complex produced by heating being run at 2.5. This follows the finding of Pecsok and Lingane (Reference 35). These $E_{1/2}$ values are -1.14v and -1.11v vs S.C.E. for the catalytically prepared and the thermally prepared complex, respectively.

Ą



•

Figure 7. Polarogram of a 1.0 ± 0.2 mM Monocomplex at pH 3.70

.

-

4



.



۹

SECTION IV

CONCLUSION

The results of this investigation suggest that there is a relationship, although complex, between those factors which favor Cr(III) complex synthesis by Cr(II) catalysis, and those which favor reduction of the Cr(III) complex at negative potentials, similar to those findings of Walsh and Earley (Reference 1).

REFERENCES

- 1. J. Walsh and J. Earley, Inorg. Chem., 3, 343 (1964).
- 2. E. Fischerova and O. Fischer, Collection Czechoslov. Chem. Commun. 26, 2570 (1961).
- 3. J. Inskeep and N. Bjerrum, Acta Chem. Scand., 15, 62 (1961).
- 4. W. W. Brandt, F. B. Dwyer, and E. C. Gyarfas, Chem. Rev., 54, 959 (1954).
- 5. R. H. Holyer, C. D. Hubbard, S. F. A. Kettle, and R. G. Wilkins, Inorg. Chem., <u>4</u>, 929 (1965).
- 6. H. H. Perkampus and H. Kohler, Z. Electrochem., 64, 365 (1960).
- 7. Giorgio Favini, Rend. ist Lombard o sci., Pt. L. Classe. Sci. mat e nat., <u>94A</u>, 331 (1960).
- 8. R. K. Steinhaus and D. W. Margerum, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 88, 441 (1966).
- 9. G. Anderegg, Helv. Chem. Acta, 46 (6), 2397 (1963).
- 10. Cooper H. Langford and Harry B. Gray, Ligand Substitution Processes, W. A. Benjamin, Inc., New York, N. Y., 1965.
- 11. F. D. Snell and C. T. Snell, Colorimetric Methods of Analysis, Vol II, 3rd ed., D. Van Nostrand Co., Inc., Princeton, N. J., 1955. (Hereafter referred to as Color. Meth.)
- 12. P. J. Secrest, J. A. Parley, and C. A. Lucchasi, Appl. Spectroscopy, 13, 141 (1959).
- 13. Mark M. Jones, Elementary Coordination Chemistry, Prentice- Hall, Inc., Englewood Cliffs, N. J., 1964, p. 144. (Hereafter referred to as Elem. Coord. Chem.)
- 14. Mark M. Jones, Elem. Coord. Chem., p. 141 (See Ref. 13.)
- 15. J. E. Earley and R. D. Cannon, "Aqueous Chemistry of Chromium (III)," Chapt. II. Work sponsored under (OSR (SRC-OAC), USAF (Grant No. AF 133-65) AD 633546.
- 16. Mark M. Jones, Elem. Coord. Chem., p. 153. (See Ref. 13.)
- 17. G. P. Rowland, Jr., Ind. Eng. Chem., Anal. Ed., 11, 442 (1939).
- 18. Snell and Snell, Color. Meth. pp. 269-279. (See Ref. 11.)
- 19. I. M. Kolthoff, P. J. Elving, and E. B. Sondell, <u>Treatise on Analytical Chemistry</u>, Part II, Vol. 8, Interscience Publishers, Inc., New York, N. Y., 1963, pp. 289-292.
- 20. J. P. Hunt and H. Taube, J. Chem. Phys., 18, 757 (1950), and 19, 602 (1951).
- 21. T. W. Swaddle, L. F. Coleman, and J. P. Hunt, Inorg. Chem., 2, 950 (1963).
- 22. F. Basolo and R. Pearson, <u>Mechanism of Inorganic Reactions</u>, John Wiley and Sons, Inc., New York, N. Y., 1958, p. 109.

REFERENCES (Cont'd)

- 23. J. A. Broomhead and F. B. Dwyer, Australian J. Chem., 14, 250 (1961).
- 24. J. P. Hunt and J. E. Earley, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 82, 5312 (1960).
- 25. H. Taube, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 77, 4481 (1955).
- 26. A. Earnshaw and J. Lewis, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 83, 396 (1961).
- 27. L. Meites, Polarographic Techniques, Interscience Publishers, Inc., New York, N. Y., 1955, p. 214. (Hereafter referred to as Polo. Tech.)
- 28. S. Herzog, Chem. Tech., 8, 544 (1956).
- 29. A. Earnshaw and J. Lewis, Nature, 181, 1262 (1958).
- 30. H. H. Sisler, N. El-Jadir, and D. H. Busch, J. Inorg. and Nucl. Chem., 16, 257 (1961).
- 31. A. Yu. Kon, Akad. Nauk. Moldavsk, SSR., 23 (1964).
- 32. E. L. King and E. B. Dismukes, Inorg. Chem., 74, 1672 (1952).
- 33. J. H. Espenson and D. W. Carlyle, Inorg. Chem., 5, 586 (1966).
- 34. A. A. Vlcek, Fisc. Faraday Soc., 26, 164 (1958).
- 35. R. L. Pecsok and J. J. Lingane, J. Am. Chem. Soc., <u>72</u>, 189 (1950).
- 36. R. L. Pecsok, L. D. Shields, and W. P. Schaefer, Inorg. Chem., 3, 114 (1964).
- 37. R. L. Pecsok and W. P. Schaefer, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 83, 62 (1961).
- 38. L. Meites, Polo. Tech., pp. 256-259. (See Ref. 27.)
- I. M. Kolthoff and J. J. Lingane, Polarography, Interscience Publishers, Inc., New York, N. Y., 1952, pp. 453-457 and 607-613. (Hereafter referred to as Pol.)
- 40. A. A. Vlcek, Nature, 189, 393 (1961).
- 41. B. R. Baker and B. D. Mehta, Inorg. Chem., 4, 848, (1965).
- 42. B. E. Douglas, H. A. Laitinen, and J. C. Bailor, Jr., J. Am. Chem. Soc., <u>72</u>, 2484 (1950).
- 43. E. I. Onstatt and H. A. Laitinen, J. Am. Chem. Soc., <u>72</u>, 4724 (1950).
- 44. Kinichi Morinaga, Kunio Nakano, and Keizo Nakamura, Nippon Kagaku Zasshi <u>82 (2)</u>, 198 (1963).
- 45. P. J. Elving and B. Zemel, Can. J. Chem., 37, 247 (1959).
- 46. Pol., p. 192. (See Ref. 39.)

Ŋ

REFERENCES (Cont'd)

- 47. A. A. Vlcek, Prog. Inorg. Chem., 5, 353 (1963).
- 48. C. Postmus and E. L. King, J. Phys. Chem., 59, 1208 (1955).
- 49. Available from the G. Frederich Smith Chemical Co., Columbus, Ohio.
- 50. G. W. Haupt, J. Research Nat'L Bur. Standards, <u>48</u>, 414 (1952).
- 51. J. P. Fackler, Jr. and D. G. Holah, Inorg. Chem. 4, 954 (1965).
- 52. Available in monohydrate form from Matheson Coleman and Bell, Division of the Matheson Company, Inc., East Rutherford, N. J.
- 53. M. J. Kamlet, Editor, Organic Electronic Spectral Data, Interscience Publishers, Inc., New York, N. Y., Vol. I., 1946-1952, pp. 429-430.
- 54. V. I. Bliznynkov and V. M. Reznikov, Zhur. Obshckei Khim., 25, 401 (1955); Chem. Abstr., 49, 9384d (1955).
- 55. Mark M. Jones, Elem. Coord. Chem., p. 152. (See Ref. 13.)
- 56. D. K. Sebera, Electronic Structure and Chemical Bonding, Blaisdell Publishing Co., New York, N. Y., 1964, p. 218.
- 57. R. M. Silverstein and G. C. Bassler, Spectrophotometric Identification of Organic Compounds, John Wiley and Sons, Inc., 1963, p. 67.

Unclassified Security Classification						
and the second	NTROL DATA - 28	D				
(Security classification of title, body of abstract and indexing annotation must be entered when the overall report is classified)						
1. ORIGINATING ACTIVITY (Corporate surface) Air Force Materials Laboratory, Researc	h and		AT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION			
Technology Division, Air Force Systems	Command,	25. 680U	Inclassified			
Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio						
3. REPORT TITLE						
Synthesis and Study of Mono-o-Phenanthroline Chromium (III) Perchlorate						
4. DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates)						
July 1966 to December 1963						
S. AUTHOR(3) (Last name, first name, initial)						
Maslona, Paul M., 1/Lt, USAF						
6. REPORT DATE	7. TOTAL NO. OF	PAGES	75. NO. OF REFS			
February 1967	31		57			
S. CONTRACT OR GRANT NO.	SA. ORIGINATOR'S R	EPORT NUM	IBER(S)			
7000						
6. PROJECT NO. 7360	AFML-	TR-67-2	15			
c. Task No. 736005			other numbers that may be i selgned			
	fhis report)					
d.						
10. A VAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES		h fmana	wittel to foreign genom			
This document is subject to special export ments or foreign nationals may be made o						
rials Laboratory (MAYA), Wright-Patters						
11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	12. SPONSORING MIL					
	Air Force Materials Laboratory, Research					
	and Technology Division, Air Force Systems					
	Command, Wr	ight-Pat	terson AFB, Ohio 45433			
13 ABSTRACT						
The mono-o-phenanthroline chromium (III) perchlorate complex is prepared by two separate methods, (1) direct addition of the base to the metal ion in acid solution and heating, and (2) the use of Cr(II) to catalyze the reaction. The desired complex is then isolated by ion-exchange methods, and determined by spectrophotometric and elemental microanalytical procedures. Polarographic information is also given.						
(Distribution of this abstract is unlimited.)						
			• *			
DD 50RM 1473			Unclassified			
	-		curity Classification			

•

.

Ą

Unclassified

R

n	AL	
Securu	v Classificatio	

14. VEV wonor	LINK A		LINK B		LINK C	
XEY WORDS		WT	ROLE	WT	ROLE	WT
Complex Synthesis Ultraviolet Analysis Ion-exchange Separation Polarographic Techniques Cr(II) Catalysis	ROLE	WT	ROLE		ROLE	
			1			
			L	L		l

INSTRUCTIONS

I. ORIGINATING ACTIVITY: Enter the name and address of the contractor, subcontractor, grantee, Department of Defenae activity or other organization (corporate author) iasuing the report.

2a. REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION: Enter the overall security classification of the report. Indicate whether "Restricted Data" is included. Marking la to be in accordance with appropriate security regulations.

2b. GROUP: Automatic downgrading is specified in DoD Directive 5200.10 and Armed Forcea Industrial Manual. Enter the group number. Also, when applicable, show that optional markings have been used for Group 3 and Group 4 as authorized.

3. REPORT TITLE: Enter the complete report title in all capital letters. Titles in all cases should be unclassified. If a meaningful title cannot be selected without classification, show title classification in all capitals in parenthesis immedistely following the title.

4. DESCRIPTIVE NOTES: If appropriate, enter the type of report, e.g., interim, progress, summary, annual, or final. Give the inclusive dates when a specific reporting period is covered.

5. AUTHOR(S): Enter the name(s) of author(s) as shown on or in the report. Enter last name, first name, middle initial. If militsry, show rsnk and branch of service. The name of the principal author is an absolute minimum requirement.

6. REPORT DATE: Enter the date of the report as day, month, yesr; or month, year. If more than one date appears on the report, use date of publication.

7a. TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES: The total page count should follow normal pagination procedures, i.e., enter the number of pages containing information.

7b. NUMBER OF REFERENCES Enter the total number of references cited in the report.

8a. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER: If appropriate, enter the spplicable number of the contract or grant under which the report was written.

8b, 8c, & 8d. PROJECT NUMBER: Enter the sppropriate military department identification, such as project number, subproject number, system numbers, task number, etc.

9a. ORIGINATOR'S REPORT NUMBER(S): Enter the official report number by which the document will be identified and controlled by the originating activity. This number must be unique to this report.

9b. OTHER REPORT NUMBER(S): If the report has been assigned any other report numbers (either by the originator or by the sponsor), also enter this number(s).

IO. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES: Enter any limitstions on further dissemination of the report, other than those

imposed by accurity classification, using atandard atatementa such as:

- (I) "Qualified requesters may obtain copies of this report from DDC."
- (2) "Foreign announcement and disaemination of this report by DDC is not authorized."
- (3) "U. S. Government agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified DDC users shall request through
- (4) "U. S. military agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified users ahall request through
- (5) "All distribution of this report is controlled. Qualifled DDC users shall request through

If the report has been furnished to the Office of Technical Services, Department of Commerce, for sale to the public, indicate this fact and enter the price, if known.

11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES: Use for additional explanatory notes.

12. SPONSO: In G MILITARY ACTIVITY: Enter the name of the departmental prop. . office or laboratory sponsoring (paying for) the research and development. Include addream

13. ABSTRACT: Enter an abstract giving a brief and factual summary of the document indicative of the report, even though it may slao appear elcowhere in the body of the technical report. If additional space is required, a continuation aheet ahell be attached.

It is highly desirable that the abstract of classified reports be unclassified. Each paragraph of the abstract shall end with an indication of the military security classification of the information in the paragraph, represented as (TS), (S), (C), or (U).

There is no limitation on the length of the abstract. However, the suggested length is from 150 to 225 words.

14. KEY WORDS: Key words are technically meaningful terma or short phrases that characterize a report and may be used as index entries for cataloging the report. Key words must be selected so that no security classification is required. Identifiers, such as equipment model designation, trade name, military project code name, geographic lr :stion, may be used sa key words but will be followed by an indication of technical context. The assignment of links, rules, and weights is optionsl.

AFLC-WPAFB-JUL 66 3M

Unclassified Security Classification